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tions and corrections are welcome. Write to John McGrain at 
ain@co.ba.md.us . 

                            IN CHRONLOGICAL ORDER:  

 of Maryland, Acts of 1639, Chapter 32, “An Act for a Ferry upon St. George’s 
r.”  

cipio Company Papers,” assembled by George P. Whitaker, 1670-1913, MS. 
, Maryland Historical Society, Special Collections.  

 Davis,  “Account Book” [costs of milling Eastern Shore wheat crops, 1751-
, re present Wicomico County],” ms., MS 1475, Maryland Historical Society, 
ial Collections, available on microfilm.   

s Seth, “This Is to Give Notice, That Any Persons Wanting Fine Flour . .  . May 
pplied at Seth’s Mill,” Annapolis Maryland Gazette, August 16, 1759, adv. 

as Beall, “To Be Sold, a Compleat Water Grist Mill, Called the Cool Spring 
” Annapolis Maryland Gazette, May 17, 1764, adv.   

 of Maryland, Acts of 1770, “An Act to Invest John Clayton with an Exclusive 
lege and Benefit of Making and Selling a Machine for Threshing of Wheat, on a 
el by Him Invented [presumably a resident of Queen Anne’s County].”  

th East Forge Account [ledger kept by Thomas Russell of Principio Company, 
-1782],” Ms., MS 1693, Maryland Historical Society, Special Collections.  

Hollingsworth Correspondence, Hollingsworth papers, Historical Society of 
sylvania, 1775 [Revolutionary era grain trade].  
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“Londontown Ferry Account [ledger kept by William Brown of Anne Arundel 
County, 1778-1779],” ms., MS 1687,  Maryland Historical Society, Special 
Collections.  
 
Laws of Maryland, Acts of 1783, Chapter 23, “A Company Incorporated for Cutting 
a Canal to Tidewater in the River Susquehanna  . . . certain persons incorporated by 
the appellation of ‘The Proprietors of the Susquehanna Canal,’” November 1783.  
 
John Beale Bordley, “Sketches of Drill for Clustering Wheat,” February 16, 1786, 
Philadelphia Society for Promoting Agriculture, Library (and available on-line).  
 
“Extract of a Letter from Elkton dated the 22d February [reporting fire at 
Hollingsworth Mill],” Maryland Journal and Baltimore Advertiser, March 7, 1796.  
 
House of Delegates, Reflection on the Propositions to Communicate by a Navigable 
Canal, the Waters of the Chesapeake with Those of Delaware Bay, Addressed to the 
Citizens of Maryland to which is Prefixed the Bill, as Published for Consideration, by 
Order of the House of Delegates (Frederick Green, Printer: Annapolis, 1797), 
Maryland Historical Society, Baltimore, Special Collections.  
 
Laws of Maryland, Acts of 1799, Chapter 16, “An Act to Incorporate A Company for 
the Purpose of Cutting and Making a Canal between the River Delaware and the 
Chesapeake Bay,” passed December 7, 1799.  
 
Isaac Purnell, “Whereas I Contemplate to Erect a Grist Mill [in Caroline County at 
Hardcastle’s Bridge],” Eastern Shore Intelligencer-Herald, August 26, 1800.  
 
William Hughlett, “Valuable Mills [.  . . in Kent County   . .  . 7 miles from Milford 
at head of Murderkiln Creek . . .   mill house 44 x 34 feet . . .  3 stories, Spring Mills 
in Delaware],” Eastern Shore Intelligencer-Herald, September 22, 1801.   
 
Joshua and Thomas Gilpin, “Mill for Sale [at head of Chester River in Kent 
County],” Baltimore Federal Gazette, November 11, 1803.  
 
Thomas Hollingsworth, “Little Elk Mills for Sale [offers stone mill with Oliver 
Evans inventions],” Federal Gazette, Baltimore, April 25, 1804, adv.  
 
Benjamin Henry Latrobe, “Section of Northern Courses of the Canal from the Tide 
in the Elk River at Frenchtown to the Forked Oak in Mr. Rudolph’s Swamp [i. e., 
Chesapeake and Delaware Canal, Maryland portion],” April 3 - 10, 1807, Library of 
Congress, maps.  
 
Laws of Maryland, Acts of 1811, Chapter 139, “An Act to Incorporate a Company 
for Building a Bridge over Choptank River at or near Denton Ferry [the Denton 
Bridge Company],” passed January 4, 1812.  
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Laws of Maryland, Acts of 1811, Chapter 191, “An Act to Incorporate a Company to 
Open the Navigation of Zachia Run [in Charles County from tidewater of the River 
Wicomico to the head of said run],”  passed January 7, 1812.  
 
“Steam Boat [adv. for sailing of Chesapeake from Baltimore to Rock Hall and to 
Frenchtown],” Baltimore Federal Gazette, June 19, 1813.   
 
Laws of Maryland, Acts of 1815, Chapter 52, “An Act to Incorporate the Steam 
Company of Princess Anne [“for erecting a steam mill and manufacturing 
establishment,” i. e., textiles],” passed January 3, 1816.  
 
Laws of Maryland, Acts of 1815, Chapter 219, “An Act to Amend an Act Entitled an 
Act for Establishment of a Company for Opening and Extending the Navigation of 
the river Pocomoke,” passed January 22, 1816.  
 
Laws of Maryland, Acts of 1816, Chapter 180, “An Act to Authorize Winbert 
Tschudy to Erect a Dam and Cut a Mill race on and through the Lands therein 
mentioned  . . .  on Red Lyon Branch [Queen Anne’s County].” 
 
“New Mill at Tidewater Locks [Bosley Mill, Port Deposit],” Baltimore Federal 
Gazette, April 8, 1817, adv.  
 
A Farmer [pseud.], “To the Editor of the American [reports Lewis Wernwag’s 
progress on Conowingo bridge],” Baltimore  American, March 10, 1819.  
 
Chesapeake and Delaware Canal Company, Communication from the Chesapeake 
and Delaware Canal Company and a  Report and Estimate of William Strickland, to 
the President and Directors (Mowry and Cameron, printers: Harrisburg, Pa., 1823), 
Enoch Pratt Free Library, Maryland Department.  
 
George W. Lightner, Susquehanna Register of Arks, Rafts, etc., etc., Arriving at Port 
Deposit in the Year 1822 (B. Edes, Printer: Baltimore, 1823).  
 
Henry Schenck, “Chesapeake and Delaware Canal, topographic view (by the 
engineer: Philadelphia, 1825), Library of Congress, maps.  
 
P. R. Horgan, “New Establishment [agricultural implements, carts, wagons, 
ploughs, wheelbarrows manufactured at Thomas Hemsly’s farm on mail road from 
Wye Mill to Queenstown],” Easton Gazette, January 25, 1825.  
 
V. Maxcey et al., “Agricultural and Domestic Economy.  Cattle Show and Fair at 
Easton.  Implements of Husbandry [Lafayette Gibson of Marengo exhibited ‘model 
of machine for reaping wheat by horse power’].” , Easton Gazette, November 19, 
1825, p. 1.  
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Laws of Maryland, Acts of 1825, Chapter 200, “An Act to Incorporate the 
Susquehanna and Patapsco Canal Company [to build from Havre de Grace to 
mouth of Conestogo and Columbia, Pa.],” passed March 8, 1826.  
 
Laws of Maryland, Acts of 1826, Chapter 136, “An Act to Incorporate the 
Pennsylvania and Maryland Canal Company [to build from the terminus of the 
Pennsylvania State Canal on River Susquehanna at or near Swatara Creek to 
tidewater],” passed February 13, 1827.  
 
A Talbot County Man [pseud.], “Could Not Get Meal Because of Drought.  
Interesting Letter Published in This Paper in 1827 Showed Serious Condition [mills 
lacked water to grind],” Easton Star Democrat, undated clipping, Maryland 
Historical Society Library,  VF, s.v. “Mills and Milling.”  
 
Laws of Maryland, Acts of 1827, Chapter 187, “An Act to Incorporate the Elkton 
and Wilmington Rail Road Company,” passed March 14, 1828.  
 
Laws of Maryland, Acts of 1827, Chapter 207, “An Act to Authorize the New-Castle 
and French Town Turnpike Company, to Make a Rail Road from French Town, on 
Elk River, to the Delaware Line, in a  Direction towards New-Castle,” passed March 
14, 1828.  
 
Laws of Maryland, Acts of 1828, Chapter 171, “An Act to Incorporate the Maryland 
Iron Company [origin of Nassawango Furnace].”  
 
John R. Wright, “Wool Carding [carding and mixing of Merino sheep wool at 
Upper Hunting Creek],” Easton Gazette, October 3, 1829.  
 
William Baker, “New Leeds Factory [woolen works on Little Elk Creek, Cecil 
County,  for sale],” American, April 10, 1830, adv.  
 
Fielding Lucas, Jr., “A Chart of the Chesapeake and Delaware Bays (Baltimore: 
1832), incl. New Castle and French Town Rail Road, John Work Garrett Library, 
The Johns Hopkins University.  
 
“The Philadelphia National Gazette [reported first passenger service on New Castle 
and Frenchtown Railroad on February 29],” Baltimore American, March 3, 1832.  
 
“Brief Notices [New Castle & Frenchtown Rail Road opened running by horse 
power],” Niles Weekly Register, 42 (March 3, 1832).  
 
John Preston & Abijah Fenn, “To Bridge Builders [commissioners solicit proposals 
for bridge over Conowingo Creek],” Elkton Press, March 10, 1832.  
 
“Railroads [Colonel Long’s locomotive on New Castle & Frenchtown Rail Road 
covered 27 miles in 2 hours],” Niles Weekly Register, 42 (April 21, 1832): 123-124. 
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“A Trial Run of One of Stephenson’s Locomotive Engines [on New Castle and 
Frenchtown Railroad],” Newark Daily Advertiser, July 9, 1832.  
 
“Locomotives [steam engine of New Castle and Frenchtown Rail Road made trip in 
1 hour and 13 minutes, returned in 1 hour and 8 minutes],” Niles Weekly Register, 
42 (August 4, 1832): 402.  
 
H. H. Barr, agent, “”Newcastle and Frenchtown Rail-Road [broadside showing 
locomotive and coaches, departure times]”  June 1833, in American Antiquarian 
Society , Worcester, Mass., broadside collection. 
 
John Harris & Richard Thomas, Trustees, “Valuable Water Privilege, Factory, grist 
Mill in St. Mary’s County [incl. Clifton Factory, cotton works, 48 x 30 feet, and tan 
yard],” Baltimore Patriot, April 29, 1834.  
 
Philadelphia, Wilmington and Baltimore Rail Road Company, Laws, Incorporating 
the Philadelphia, Wilmington and Baltimore Rail-Road Company, of the State of 
Pennsylvania; the Wilmington and Susquehanna Rail-Road Company, of the State of 
Delaware; the Delaware and Maryland Rail-Road Company, of the State of Maryland; 
the Baltimore and Port Deposit Rail-Road Company, of the State of Maryland: as 
Enacted by the Different Legislatures of those States; Together with the Articles of 
Union, between the Wilmington and Susquehanna, and the Delaware and Maryland 
Rail-Road Companies. (S. C. Atkinson, Printer: Philadelphia, 1836), Enoch Pratt 
Free Library, Baltimore.  
 
Henry R. Hazlehurst, “Map and Profile of the Baltimore and Port Deposit Rail 
Road as Located and Now Under Construction to a Point near Havre de Grace,” 
1836, Peabody Library, Baltimore.  
 
Report from the Secretary of War Transmitting a Report and Estimate in Reference to 
the Survey of the Eastern Shore Railroad, in Answer to a Resolution of the 28th ultimo, 
March 3,  1837 (United States: War Department: Washington D. C., 1837), Enoch 
Pratt Free Library.  
 
“Baltimore and Philadelphia Railroad [completed through Cecil County to 
Wilmington, Delaware],” Sun, July 25, 1837.   
 
Hand’s Canal Line, “Bills of Lading, May 14 to August 25, 1836” on Chesapeake 
and Delaware Canal, ms., Special Collections, VF, Maryland Historical Society, 
Baltimore.  
 
“Hussey’s Grain Cutter [reaper demonstrated at Oxford, Easton, and Trappe],” 
The Farmer and Gardener, 3 (October 4, 1836): 181.  
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“Hussey’s Horse Mowing Machine [awarded a cup at Talbot County exhibition],” 
The Farmer and Gardener, 3 (October 4, 1836): 177.   
 
Laws of Maryland, Acts of 1838, Chapter 368, “An Act to Incorporate the Benedict 
Union Silk Company [in Charles County].” 
 
Maryland General Assembly, House of Delegates, Select Committee on the Charters 
of the Pennsylvania, Delaware and Maryland Railroad Company and the Newcastle 
and Frenchtown Turnpike and Railroad Company, Report of the Select Committee, 
Appointed by the Order of the House, February 11, 1839, to Inquire Whether the 
Pennsylvania, Delaware and Maryland Rail Road Company and the Newcastle and 
Frenchtown Turnpike and Railroad Company Have Not Forfeited Their Charters [by 
the General Assembly: Annapolis, 1839). Enoch Pratt Free Library.  
 
Maryland General Assembly, Testimony Taken by the Select Committee of the House 
of Delegates Relative to the Eastern Shore Rail Road (William McNeir, Printer: 
Annapolis, Md., 1839), Maryland Historical Society.  
 
William W. Handy, Speech Delivered in the House of Delegates of Maryland, April 4, 
1839, on the Proposition to Release the Private Stockholders from Paying up Their 
Stock to the Eastern Shore Rail Road Company (J. D. Toy, Printer: Baltimore 1839), 
Enoch Pratt Free Library 
 
“Whitaker Iron Company Records,” incl. Principio Furnace, 1839-1938, ms., 6 
boxes, MS 1730.1, Maryland Historical Society, Special Collections.  
 
Laws of Maryland, Acts of 1839, Chapter 264, “An Act to Incorporate the Benedict 
Steam Milling and Manufacturing Company [James F. Sothron and 12 partners 
authorized to produce unspecified products in Benedict, Charles County],” passed 
March 16, 1840.  
 
“Awful Calamity, Great Destruction of Life [explosion of Peacemaker naval gun 
near Fort Washington on Potomac],” Baltimore Republican & Argus, February 29, 
1844.  
 
“Big Elk [listing of mills],” Cecil Whig, October 18, 1845.  
 
“Little Elk [listing of mills],” Cecil Whig, October 25, 1845.  
 
“North East [listing of mills on that stream in Cecil County],” Cecil Whig, 
November 1, 1845.  
 
Jacob Wright, “Pott’s Mill [late miller’s family afflicted with small pox moved out, 
mill now kept by Francis F. Russum],” Easton Gazette, January 3, 1846.   
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“New Paper Mill [Robert Carter & Sons at Marley, Cecil County],” Baltimore 
Republican & Argus, April 28, 1846.  
 
Richard Thomas, agent, “Valuable Mill Property at Public Sale [steam mill at 
Easton point on Tred Haven River],” Easton Gazette, August 29, 1846.  
 
Richard Thomas, “Valuable Mill Property at Public Sale [steam gristmill at Easton 
Point],” Easton Gazette, September 5, 1846.  
 
Thomas W. Morgan, “Valuable Mill Property for Sale [steam mill at head of St. 
Clement’s Bay, St. Mary’s County],” Sun, September 18, 1846.  
 
“Sale Notice of Elk Iron Works,” Cecil Whig, January 30, 1847.  
 
Alexander Kilbour, A Bill Entitled, An Act to Authorize the Philadelphia, Wilmington 
and Baltimore Rail Road Company to Build a Bridge over the Susquehanna River 
(n.p.: n.p., ca. 1848), Maryland Historical Society Special Collections.  
 
Emil Reuter, American Locomotives (United States Job Printing Office: 
Philadelphia, 1849), incl. plans of engine Delaware on New Castle and French Town 
Rail Road.  
 
“Debts and Finances of the States of the Union: with reference to Their General 
Condition and prosperity.  Chapter V, The Middle States—Maryland [incl. 
suspension of work on Eastern Shore Railroad, State offer to match $1 000,000 of 
private  investment; also Tidewater Canal which had $1,000,000 loan from the State 
in 1838],” Merchants’ Magazine, 20 (1849): 481, 486. 
 
George Evans, “Wool Carding [at Garrett’s Mills on Big Elk, 6 miles north of 
Elkton,” Cecil Whig, May 11, 1849, adv.  
 
J. B. Steel, “Farming in Caroline County, Md.,” American Farmer, 5 (December 
1849): 197.  
 
J. E. Larkin, “Map of the Philadelphia, Wilmington, and Baltimore Railroad, 
Shewing Its Connections,” (by the company: Philadelphia, 185_), in Library of 
Congress, map collection also available on-line at L. C.’s “American Memory” web 
site.    
 
“Map of the Philadelphia & Baltimore Rail Road as located by W. Strickland and 
B. H. Latrobe also the Proposed Route by Steamboat and the New Castle Rail Road 
and that proposed to be Constructed by Way of Oxford and Port-Deposit,” 
(Watson’s Lithographs, J. C. Trautwine: Philadelphia, ca. 1850), MHS Library, 
Special Collections.  
 

 8



“Cotton Factory at Public Sale by Avondale Manufacturing Company,” Baltimore 
American, July 11, 1850, adv.   
 
Frederick Calvert [Lord Baltimore], Indenture of Agreement 4th July 1760, between 
Lord Baltimore and Thomas and Richard Penn, Esquires, Setting the Limits and 
Boundaries of Maryland, Pennsylvania, and the Three Lower Counties of Newcastle, 
Kent and Sussex, on Delaware (Kite and Walton: Philadelphia, 1851).  
 
“Sketch of New Valley [incl. peg factory],” Cecil Whig, December 27, 1851.  
 
R. S. Fisher, M. D., Gazetteer of the State of Maryland [incl. 1850 statistics of iron, 
flour, and timber production],  (J. H. Coulton: New York, 1852).  
 
“A New Steam Ferry Boat [The Maryland under construction by Harlan & 
Hollingsworth at Wilmington, Del.,  for PW&B crossing of Susquehanna],” Cecil 
Whig, January 22, 1853.  
 
“Affairs in Cecil County [first barge of Cumberland Coal & Iron Company passed 
through Canal to Chesapeake city],” Sun, January 24, 1853.  
 
“Maryland and Delaware Ship Canal [General Assembly Bill authorizing a canal to 
compete with the C. & D Canal],” Sun, February 3, 1853.  
 
“Fire Bricks [Reeves, Abbott & Griffin take over North East Manufacturing 
Company brickyard],” Cecil Whig, March 5, 1853.  
 
“A Steamboat at Elkton [John G. Groome first to reach that town],” Cecil Whig, 
July 22, 1853. 
 
“The Contemplated Bridge at Bohemia Ferry, Cecil Whig, November 26, 1853. 
 
Jeremiah L. Leslie, “The Mills and Manufactories of Cecil County Half a Century 
Ago,” Cecil Whig, April 22, 1854. 
 
“Repair of Patuxent Railroad Bridge . .  . The Factory Hands—Flouring mill, 
Machine Establishment [re industries at Laurel],” Sun, November 11, 1854.  
 
J. R. Trimble, Esq., Baltimore and Potomac Railroad.  Report Containing Result of 
Surveys and Estimates, Made June 1st, 1855, (James Young’s Steam Printing 
Establishment: Baltimore, 1855), Maryland Historical Society Library, 
Miscellaneous Railroad Publications.  
 
“Lord’s Factory,” Cecil Whig, January 15, 1855, reprinted in Cecil Historical 
Journal, 5 (Spring 2005): 11.   
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“New Depot at Elkton,” Cecil Whig, May 5, 1855, reprinted in Cecil Historical 
Journal, 5 (Spring 2005): 10.  
 
“The Port Deposit Bridge [re failure of owners to repair covered bridge across 
Susquehanna],” Cecil Whig, Elkton, Md., September 8, 1855. 
 
“Affairs in Cecil County—The Port Deposit Railroad [u/c from Perryville to Port 
Deposit],” Sun, November 26, 1855.  
 
“Sale of Patuxent Cotton Factory [at Laurel],” American,  December 6, 1855.  
 
“Re-Building of the Laurel Factory,” Baltimore Republican & Argus, March 19, 
1856.  
 
S. Morris Cochran, Trustee, “Timber Land and Sawmill [Mill Mount and steam 
saw and grist mill in Calvert County],” Sun, November 13, 1856, adv.  
 
 
“The Ice Flood in the Susquehanna [Port Deposit bridge washed away],” American, 
February 13, 1857,  
 
“Trial of Reapers in Maryland [Hussey’s reaper and those of Manny and Owen 
Dorsey at Chestertown],” Cultivator, 5 (August 1857): 251, pub. at Albany, New 
York.   
 
Simon J. Martinet, “Martinet’s Map of Cecil County, Maryland, from the Coast 
and Original Surveys,” (R. L. Barnes: Philadelphia, 1858).  
 
“Dreadful Conflagration: Salisbury in Ruins,” Salisbury Sentinel, August 10, 1860.  
 
T. H. Kemp, Trustee, “Steam Sawmill [of Ennals Hubbard located on Maryland 
and Delaware Railroad],” American Union, Denton, November 20, 1860.  
 
S. B. Stubbs, “Philadelphia & Baltimore Central Railroad [have resumed grading in 
Cecil County, solicits bids for horse feed],” Cecil Whig, December 22, 1860, adv., p. 
4. 
 
J. Leander Bishop, A History of American Manufactures from 1608 to 1860 (Edward 
Young and Co.: Philadelphia, 1861).  
 
Elizabeth Mifflin, ed., Biographical Sketches of the Bordley Family, of Maryland, for 
their Descendants (H. B. Ashmead: Philadelphia, 1865).  
 
David Blockson, “Trustee Sale of Valuable Real Estate [Upper Hunting Creek Mill, 
later called Linchester Mill],” Denton American Union, October 15, 1865.  
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“Letter from Rising Sun, March 20th, 1866 [two new warehouses built; daily train 
service to Philadelphia opened],” Cecil Whig, March 24, 1866.  
 
“”Philadelphia & Baltimore C. R. R. [now completing track to Port Deposit; expect 
connection to Columbia, Pa.],” Cecil Whig, June 2, 1866.  
 
“Local Affairs [H. S. Mcgraw constructing three-story flour mill at Porter’s 
Bridge],” Cecil Whig, June 16, 1866.  
 
“The Kent County Railroad [organizational meeting held at Chestertown],” Cecil 
Whig, June 23, 1866.  
 
“Sale of Properties [James T. McCullough, Esq., Trustee, sold former Jethro 
Johnson woolen mill near Bay View to William, James, and H. Clay Johnson],” 
Cecil Whig, June 23, 1866.  
 
“Another Cecil County Invention [James Shobe of Upper Principio demonstrated 
horse drawn machine to cut and sheave corn],” Cecil Whig, June 30, 1866.  
 
G. Fred. Maddox, Trustee, “Mill Lot at St. Inigoes [with machinery of burned steam 
mill],” St. Mary’s Beacon, Leonardtown, October 11, 1866, adv.  
 
Peter W. Crain & B. G. Harris, Trustees, “Trustees’ Sale of Very Valuable Real 
Estate in St. Mary’s County, Md. [Clifton Factory],” St. Mary’s Beacon, 
Leonardtown, October 18, 1866, adv.  
 
Peter W. Crain & B. G. Harris, “Trustees’ Sale [at suit of Johns Hopkins, sale of 
Clifton Factory],” St. Mary’s Beacon, May 9, 1867, adv.  
 
Col. George W. Hughes, Chief Engineer, Report on the Survey of a Rail Road Route 
Connecting the City of Baltimore with Drum Point on the Patuxent River (William 
Thompson of R., Printer: Annapolis, 1868), Maryland Historical Society Library. 
Miscellaneous Railroad Publications.   
 
“Operations of the State Oyster Police [unlicensed tongers’ canoes seized at Poplar 
Island],” Sun, June 2, 1868.  
 
“The Railroad [line built within 20  miles of Cambridge; construction of bridge over 
Higgins Mill Pond],” Baltimore Gazette, July 24, 1868.  
 
Benson J. Lossing, Pictorial Field Book of the War of 1812 (Harper & Brothers: New 
York, 1869), incl. drawing of Carleton Mill on Bladensburg battlefield, Prince 
George’s County], p. 9.  
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“Maryland Affairs.  Prince George’s County. Progress of Our Road [Baltimore & 
Potomac track laid to Little Patuxent, bridge over Rogue Harbor completed]," 
Baltimore Gazette, July 15, 1871.  
 
“The Worcester and Somerset Railroad [first train from King’s Creek to Costen’s 
Station near Newtown on Pocomoke River],” Sun, June 6, 1872.  
 
“Railroad Enterprise.  The Baltimore and Potomac Railroad.  Its Completion and 
Equipment.  First Passage of Trains over the New Route.  Excursion to the National 
Capital.  Importance of the Enterprise,” Baltimore Gazette, July 2, 1872.  
 
William S. Ridgely, “Trustee’s Sale of Valuable Mill Property  . . .  Nichols Mill [in 
Tuckahoe Neck],” Denton Journal, October  18, 1872.  
 
William Hopkins and John N. Brown, Baltimore Enterprise.  A Handsome 
Investment.  Baltimore, Chesapeake & Delaware Bay Railroad, Connecting Baltimore 
and New York, by Way of Kent Island and Delaware Breakwater.  First Mortgage 
Bonds, 6 Per cent Gold Bearing (Baltimore, 1874), incl. map, Maryland Historical 
Society Library, Miscellaneous Railroad Publications. 
 
Chesapeake and Delaware Canal Company, Annual Report [incl. map of the canal], 
Historical Society of Cecil County, Elkton [also available on-line at 
http://cchistory.org/map1874.htm.   
 
Lake, Griffing, and Stevenson, An Illustrated Atlas of Cecil County, Maryland 
(Philadelphia, 1877).  
 
“Down the Bay [re Thomas Point Lighthouse and hard winter],” American, January 
23, 1877.  
 
“Destructive Fire in Princess Anne, Md., and Burning of a Saw Mill [Cohn & 
Bock],” Sun, February 4, 1874.  
 
S. S. Sutliff, “Navy Point Mills [grist and saw mill offered for sale at St. Michael’s],” 
American Miler, 2 (September 1874): 60.  
 
“The New Steam Mill [built by Colonel Ammon for grain and lumber],’ Maryland 
Independent, Port Tobacco, October 4, 1877.  
 
“The Late Storm [flood damage at Baldwin cotton mill, Brewster’s cotton mill, Elk 
Creek],” American, October 8, 1877.  
 
Prentiss Ingram, Land of Legendary Lore (Gazette Publishing House: Easton, 1878).  
 
“Iron Making in the Colony of Maryland, 1720-1780,” Cecil Whig, Elkton, February 
9, 1878.  
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“New Cheese Factory in Maryland [Job Waters of Prince George’s County, 
president],” Maryland Farmer, 16 (June 1879): 198.  
 
George Johnston, History of Cecil County (by the author: Elkton, 1881).  
 
Cohn & Bock Milling Company, ms., company records, 1882-1934, Maryland 
Historical Society, Special Collections, Ms. 1759, acquired 1970.  
 
W. H. Smith, “The Maryland and Delaware Ship Canal,” Sun, August17, 1881.   
 
“A Trip Through Kent.  Interesting Sights and Scenes on the Eastern Shore—The 
Crops,” American, May 2, 1882.  
 
Rev James Murray, History of Pocomoke City Formerly New Town (Curry Clay & 
Co.: Baltimore, 1883).  
 
Maryland Historical Society, “Tolchester Photograph Collection,” 2 boxes, 1883-
1925, Collection No. PP128, MHS, Baltimore.   
 
“Poached Oysters [Maryland marine police vs. illegal dredgers],” Harpers Weekly 
Magazine, March 4, 1884 [incl. woodcut illustrations].  
 
“A Scrap of History—Robert Pilson, Manager [re supt. of Laurel Factory for 50 
years],” Maryland Journal, Towson, January 2, 1886.  
 
“A Railroad Completed.  The New Philadelphia Line the Result of Three Years’ 
Work.  The Baltimore and Ohio’s Route—Track Laid and Connection Made to 
Philadelphia—Traffic Soon to Begin,” Sun, May 10, 1886.  
 
Coleman Sellers, Jr., “Oliver Evans and His Inventions,” American Miller, 14 (July 
1, 1886): 379 [quoted from Franklin Journal, July 1886].  
 
“Salisbury in Ashes [re  fire at E. E. Johnson & Co. lumber mill],” American, 
October 19, 1886.  
 
“Eastern Shore Towns.  Quaint Old Chestertown—Colonial Reminiscences—
Modern progress,” Sun, November 18, 1886.  
 
Henry Whiteley, “The Principio Company.” Pennsylvania Magazine of History, 11 
(1887): 63-68.   
 
Prospectus of the Baltimore and Drum Point Railroad Company, and Copy of the 
Charter and the Laws Relating to the Company  . .  . . Also Traffic Contract with the 
Baltimore and Ohio Railroad Company (Press of the American Job Office: 
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Baltimore, 1888), Maryland Historical Society Library, Miscellaneous Railroad 
Publications.   
 
Eastern Shoreman [pseud.], “A Voice from Maryland [miller at Westover reports 
on local mills and curious visitors],” American Miller, 16 (April 1, 1888): 16.  
 
“Mill Improvement near Elkton [new machinery for Marley Paper Mill],” Sun, 
August 18, 1888.  
 
“An Old Landmark in Maryland [mill at North East, Cecil County],” American 
Miller, 16 (October 1, 1888): 683.  
 
J. T. F. Brown, “A Very Short System Mill [description of roller system installed in 
old Wye Mill],” American Miller, 17 (May 1, 1889): 340.  
 
“Pocomoke City [R. M. & T. F. Stevenson to remodel Eagle Hominy Mill],” 
Manufacturers’ Record, 8 (October 25, 1890): 40.  
 
 “Methodism in a Mill [early Methodist worship at Sluyter or Van Bibber Mill, 
Cecil County],” American Miller, 18 (December 1, 1890): 842.  
 
J. T. F. Brown, “Is Delighted [with Perfection brand turbines at Wye Mills],” 
American Miller, 19 (January 1, 1891): 50.  
 
S. L. Webster, “Maryland Mill [adv. to sell mill near East New Market, the Lower 
Hunting Creek Mill],” American Miller, 20 (March 1, 1892): 227.  
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NOTES:  
 
1. John Calder and John C. Brennan are the same author.  
 
2. “Prince Georges” and “Prince George’s” are both used by various sources.  
 
3. The Sun and Evening Sun are both Baltimore publications.  

 
4. Prolific writers are often inconsistent in the use of their middle names or 

initials.  
 
5. Some newspaper advertisements for flour mills are included to provide  points 

in the timeline of industrial development.   
 
6. As many titles as possible about ships, lighthouses, or trains have been  

included. Lighthouses anywhere on the Bay are included, even those near 
Baltimore or Annapolis.  

 
7. See separate bibliography of the Susquehanna River bridges and rail crossings.  
 
8. The Maryland Historical Society Library has a good collections of pamphlets 

and documents, too numerous to list, on the C. & D. Canal. Also some 1836 bills 
of lading. The 1874 annual report contains a small map of the canal. 

 
9. We have followed the custom of Italicizing the names of ships.  
 
10. Anne Arundel County was covered by the Baltimore and vicinity Bibliography.  
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